

Hancock County Agricultural Society - Findlay, Ohio

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION CONSTITUTION and BY-LAWS

Formed at Findlay, Ohio March 26, 1938
Revised 1956, 1969, 1976, 1983, 1985, 1987, 1990,
1991, 1993, 1995, 1996, 1998, 1999, 2008, 2011,
2015, 2016 and 2021.

Constitution Article I – Name

Section 1. The name of this Society shall be the Hancock County Agricultural Society, with its principal place of business at Findlay, Ohio, and operating an agricultural exhibit on the fairgrounds located at Findlay, Ohio.

Article 1-A - Purpose

Section 1. The Society is organized exclusively for charitable and educational, or scientific purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future code. It is specifically in furtherance of the organizational mission to improve agricultural and horticultural production, encourage education of the general public as to agriculture, livestock, home economics, and to promote other related interests of Hancock County, Ohio, as deemed proper in accordance with the rules and regulations set forth by the Ohio Department of Agriculture.

Section 2. The Corporation shall carry on only such activities as are consonant with the purposes set forth in this Article First. No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any Incorporator, Member, or Director of the Corporation, or of any other private individual, except that the Corporation is authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in this Article First. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation; and no activity of the Corporation shall consist of participating in or intervening in (including the publishing or distributing of statements), any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

Section 3. It is intended that the Corporation shall have the status of an organization which is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, (i) contributions to which are deductible for federal income tax purposes under Section 171(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, and (ii) gifts and bequests to which are deductible for federal gift tax and federal estate tax purposes under Section 2522(a)(2) and Section 2055(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, respectively, for so long as such taxes apply. These Articles of Incorporation shall be construed, and all authority and activities of the Corporation shall be limited, accordingly."

Article II – Object

Section 1. The object of this society shall be to promote improvement in agricultural and horticultural production and encourage all agricultural, livestock, home economic, social, school and stimulate a close relationship among our citizens.

Article III – Membership

Section 1. Only residents of Hancock County, who are eighteen (18) years of age or older shall be eligible for membership. A qualified person may become a member, on payment of a fixed fee payable annually and shall be duly registered

as a member on the records of the society for the calendar year for which the membership fee is paid. The fee for membership shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Society.

Section 2. No person shall pay for or secure more than one (1) such membership and that membership shall be for himself. No memberships shall be issued to corporations, organizations, partnerships or firms.

Section 3. A membership roster shall be kept by the secretary of the society, subject to public inspection at all times.

Section 4. (2021) All open class exhibitors must hold a Week Long Fair Ticket.

Section 5. Only persons who purchase a Membership in the society may vote or hold office.

Section 6. Memberships shall be placed on sale December 15 of each year and shall remain on sale at least thirty (30) hours each week at a place specified by the board of directors until five (5) days before the annual fair of the society, when the board of directors may discontinue the sale. Notice of the days and hours when memberships can be purchased and the place where they may be purchased shall be announced in the annual premium list and at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the county twice (2) during the period of sale - once when they go on sale and again no less than seven (7) days before the sale is terminated, but not earlier than twenty-one (21) days before the sale is ended.

Section 7. Membership certificates shall bear date-day and year membership begins and day and year membership terminates - denoting period of membership in the society and a place for the signature of the person holding said membership.

Article IV-Voting

Section 1. Members with dues paid shall be entitled to one (1) vote per member. Proxies shall not be voted and all voting and balloting shall be conducted according to rules and regulations of the Department of Agriculture.

Article V-Annual Meeting of Membership

Section 1. The annual meeting of the members of the society shall be held on the first Saturday in December of each year.

Section 2. At this meeting, the officers and directors of the society shall make reports to the membership of the Society concerning the past fair and make recommendations for the betterment of future fairs. The members shall be given opportunity to make suggestions and recommendations for the improvement of the society and it's fair. Such other business may be presented as may be prescribed by this constitution or as may be deemed proper by the Board of Directors.

Article VI-Directorate

Section 1. The business of the Society shall be directed by a board of twenty-six (26) members elected according to the rules and regulations of the Department of Agriculture. The election of directors shall be by an acceptable method of voting, except for ex-officio members permitted by state law.

Section 2. There shall be one (1) member of the Board of Directors elected from the membership of each township of the county, three (3) from the membership residing in the City of Findlay which shall be defined as City of Findlay Seat A, B and C and six (6) at large members from the membership residing in Hancock County which will be defined as At Large Seat A, B, C, D, E, and F. The Extension

Educator, Ag and the County Superintendent of Schools shall also be members of the Board of Directors Ex-officio. The Board of County Commissioners, the Junior Fair Coordinator and Fair Manager shall be Honorary Members. Ex-officio and Honorary Members shall have no voting power.

Section 3. Nine (9) members shall be elected in each of two (2) years and eight (8) directors in the third year, except member's ex-officio. The directors shall be elected annually at a place and time designated by the Board of Directors. The president shall appoint a committee consisting of at least three (3) judges and two (2) clerks who are members of the Society, but not candidates. This committee shall conduct the election and declare the results thereof.

Section 4. Members of the Society must declare their candidacy for the office of director by filing with the secretary of the Hancock County Agricultural Society, during regular office hours a petition signed by ten (10) members of the Society seven (7) days before the annual election of the directors. Only regularly nominated candidates who have met the filing requirements shall be eligible for election as a director. No write-ins shall be allowed.

Section 5. At each annual election the necessary number of directors shall be elected for a term of three (3) years. The term of office shall end the 30th day of November or prior to November 30th when a successor has been duly elected and qualified.

Section 6. (2021) Vacancies on the Board of Directors, caused by death, removal from township, or other cause, may be filled by appointment of an eligible person by the Board of Directors, who shall serve until the next annual election, when the office shall be filled by the regular election for the unexpired term. If a director resigns his/her position as director because of moving out of his/her district, up to 90 days prior to the election, he/she shall be allowed to hold that position for the remainder of the current board's fiscal year.

Section 7. The annual election may be held during the fair; but must be held on or before the last week in November. The date for the election must be set by the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Any Board Member whose behavior is deemed by a majority of the Executive Committee of the Hancock County Agricultural Society to be rowdy, unruly, disruptive, obstructive, obnoxious or offensive, shall be issued a warning. Upon the third finding of the Executive Committee of such conduct by a Board Member in any one term, then upon the third finding, the Board Member in violation shall appear before the Board of Directors to answer as to why the offending Board Member should not be expelled from the Board. After said hearing, should three-fourths (3/4) of the Board vote to expel the offending Board Member, said offending Board Member shall be forthwith expelled, the expelled Board Member's position to be filled pursuant to Section 6 herein.

Article VII-Organization and Meetings

Section 1. The Board of Directors of the Society shall meet annually in November and elect, by ballot from the directors, a president, vice president, and four (4) other members who shall constitute an executive committee and ticket chairman, and shall serve for one (1) year.

Section 2. The secretary and/or treasurer shall be hired by the Board of Directors and may or may not be a director.

Section 3. Before election of officers the newly elected directors shall qualify by taking the following oath (affirmation) before a competent authority (designated by law). *"I do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support the constitution of the United States, the constitution of Ohio, laws of Ohio and rules and regulations of the Department of Agriculture of Ohio, pertaining to Agricultural Societies and to the best of my ability perform the duties of director of the Hancock County Agricultural Society, so help me God."*

Article VIII-Duties of Officers

Section 1. The president shall preside at all meetings of the membership of the Board of Directors. He shall exercise, subject to the control of the Directors, a general supervision over all affairs of the society and shall perform generally all duties incident to the office and such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 2. Vice President: The Vice President shall perform all duties of the President in his absence or during his inability to act and shall have such order and further other powers and shall perform such other and further duties as may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Secretary: The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all proceedings of the Board of Directors and make a proper record of the same which shall be attested by him. He shall keep such books as may be required by the Board of Directors, shall keep a roll of the members of the Society and shall conduct the correspondence of the Society. He shall keep a record of all monies coming into and from what source. He shall likewise keep an itemized account of all monies paid out and for what purpose and generally perform such other duties as may be required by the Board of Directors or as prescribed by the Ohio Department of Agriculture.

Section 4. Treasurer: The treasurer shall:

1. Assume custody and responsibility of all funds and/or Securities of the Society.
2. Be responsible for all deposits and withdrawals of monies into and out of a banking or investment firm designated by the Board of Directors.
3. Be responsible for investing all monies pursuant to the Investment Policy as adopted by the Board of Directors.
4. Be responsible for maintaining an accurate and legible accounting system and associated record.
5. Be responsible to receive all money coming into the Society, legible account system and associated records.
6. Be responsible for a receipting system to show the source of revenue.
7. Be responsible for maintaining a record of all pay orders.
8. Be responsible for disbursements of all monies by check, cash, money orders, etc.
9. Be responsible for preparing monthly and an annual report of any monies received and/or disbursed during each respective reporting period.
10. Be responsible for the computations of the payroll and maintain the payroll records.
11. Be responsible for submitting all Federal, State & Local tax reporting requirements.
12. Maintain a file of financial records as may be required by Federal, State and Local law.
13. Be responsible for preparing the portion of the Ohio Department of Agriculture's report which requires financial information.
14. Supervise all cashiers, ticket sellers and other personnel working for the Treasurer.
15. Serve as a Committee member on the Budget and Finance Committee.

16. Coordinate as needed with the Secretary, Fair Manager & Directors any money receipts/disbursements required in their respective area of responsibility.

Section 5. The ticket chairman and/or assistant shall be a member of the Board of Directors. A complete job description shall be on file at the Fair Office.

Section 6. The executive committee shall perform such duties and have such powers as may be delegated to it by the Board of Directors.

Section 7. The Board of Directors shall have charge of the management of the affairs of the Society. A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Section 8. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to provide ways and means of financing the operation of the Agricultural Society, make and provide for necessary contracts for services, concessions, admissions, space, stalls, and all other service: provide for payment of necessary expenses: and exercise control over all matters of receipt and expense, through sufficient auditing and record service: except, it shall be compulsory upon the board to pro-rate awards and premiums at the end of each exhibit, in such manner that no deficit caused by payment of awards and premiums, shall be extended into the following year of operation and year shall be closed with all outstanding bills paid and receipted for. The Board of Directors may incur debts only as provided for under the laws of Ohio and rules and regulations of the State Department of Agriculture and only for leases of real estate and permanent improvements.

Article IX-Time of Annual Exhibit

Section 1. The annual exhibition of the Society shall be held at such time as deemed advisable by the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of the Ohio Director of Agriculture.

Article X-Rules and Regulations

Section 1. The Board of Directors of this Society may make and enforce such rules, as they deem necessary. All rules shall be consistent with the constitution and by-laws of this society, the laws of Ohio and such rules and regulations of the Department of Agriculture as they relate to county agricultural societies.

Article XI-Amendments

Section 1. Amendments or alterations of the constitution may be made only at the annual meeting of the members and a majority vote of the members present shall be necessary to adopt.

Section 2. Amendments to the constitution or by-laws may be proposed by: a majority of the Board of Directors at a scheduled meeting, voting in favor of placing an amendment on the ballot, or filing a petition with the secretary of the Society at least fourteen (14) days prior to the annual meeting of the members. Said petition must set forth the proposed amendment and be signed by not less than twenty-five (25) members. If an amendment is proposed, it shall receive a majority of the membership voting for adoption and then it shall become a part of the constitution, or by laws.

Section 3. Shall publish each such amendment in at least one (1) newspaper of general circulation in the county, not less than three (3) and not more than ten (10) days before the annual meeting at which it will be voted upon.

By Laws

Revised 1956, 1969, 1976, 1983, 1985, 1987, 1990, 1991, 1993, 1995, 1996, 1998

Article I-Quorum

Section 1. A majority of the members of Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business of the Society.

Article II-Meetings

Section 1. The day and time of the regular

monthly meetings of the Board of Directors shall be established at the reorganization meeting of each new year. All regular meetings of the Board of Directors throughout the year shall start at 7:30 p.m. at the office of the secretary located on the existing fairgrounds or at a place designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. The president may call regular or special meetings of the membership, or Board of Directors, at any time deemed necessary. Ten (10) members of the Society may ask for a special meeting in writing, and the secretary shall call it. A regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors may be called by the secretary upon request by not less than three (3) members of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Notice of special meetings of the Board of Directors can be delivered personally to each director, by phone, or sent to each director by mail. The notice need not specify the purposes of the meeting.

Section 4. If any member of the Board of Directors misses three (3) consecutive regular meetings, the board may declare his position vacant and name a successor to serve until the next annual election when a director shall be elected for the unexpired term.

Article III-Order of Business

Section 1. The order of business shall be:

- Roll Call
- Report of Officers
- Hearing of all guests
- Unfinished business
- Reading and approval or adoption of minutes
- New Business
- Bills and Accounts
- Appointments
- Report of Committees
- Adjournment

Section 2. The order of business may be temporarily suspended at any meeting upon a majority vote of a quorum present.

Article IV-Committees

Section 1. The president shall appoint those committees from the membership as is deemed necessary to carry out the operation of the fair and the supervision and maintenance of the fairgrounds. These committees are subject to approval by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. The budget and finance committee shall be elected by the Board of Directors and shall consist of four (4) members of the Board of Directors and the treasurer. They shall prepare a budget annually for the Board of Directors and all expenditures not included in the budget shall be reviewed by the committee and a recommendation from them will be necessary before the expenditure may be made by the Board of Directors.

Article V-Superintendent

Section 1. The president shall appoint all superintendents of the various departments of the annual exhibition subject to the approval of a majority of the Board of Directors. These shall be as many in number as deemed necessary, and may vary from year-to-year.

Article VI-Rules

Section 1. All persons are subject to all the rules and regulations of the Board of Directors, and rules may be changed from year-to-year. The Board of Directors shall have the right to settle all matters in dispute, interpret all published rules, and make new rules at any time if necessary to safeguard the interest of exhibitor or public.

Article VII-Compensation

Section 1. Directors shall receive such compensation as the Board of Directors may determine, not to exceed the limit established in the rules and regulations of the Department of

Agriculture. The directors may receive an hourly wage for work done on the fairgrounds when the work would require hired labor to complete. The directors may be paid their expenses at conventions and district meetings. The employees may receive special compensation for special services as agreed to by the Board of Directors.

Article VIII-Employees

Section 1. A caretaker may be hired by the Board of Directors and shall work as directed by the Board. A job description shall be on file at the Fair Office.

Section 2. A Junior Fair Coordinator may be hired by the Board of Directors and shall work as directed by the Board. A job description shall be on file at the Fair Office.

Section 3. A Fair Manager may be hired by the Board of Directors and shall work as directed by the Board. A job description shall be on file at the Fair Office.

Section 4. Other individuals may be hired as deemed necessary by the Board of Directors and shall work as directed by the Board. A job description shall be on file at the Fair Office.

Article IX-Membership

Section 1. All past board members that served three (3) terms or nine (9) years shall be considered a Life Member of the Society and be allowed admittance, parking, and making open class entries at the Hancock County Fair. They shall receive a membership certificate for the member and spouse to the Hancock County Agricultural Society.

Article X-General Rules

Section 1. A premium list must be published before the date of the fair and must include the rules and regulations governing the exhibitors.

Section 2. Superintendents of the various departments shall secure a competent judge for the department of which they are in charge.

Section 3. The Hancock County Agricultural Society being organized under Sec. 1711.01 of the general code, it shall be the duty of the executive committee to request the County Commissioners to include in their budget such appropriations as specified in Sec. 1771.01, 1711.03, 1711.15, and 1711.22.

Section 4. The Hancock County Agricultural Society shall have their annual fair or any other exhibition sponsored by or under the control of the agricultural society, an official veterinarian/s who has been approved by the Department of Agriculture of Ohio. Before the appointment of an official veterinarian/s the agricultural society shall submit to the Director of Agriculture, for his approval, the name/s and address/s of the veterinarian/s whom the agricultural society proposes to appoint. After the veterinarian/s recommended for appointment has been approved by the Director of Agriculture, the agricultural society shall certify his appointment to the Director of Agriculture not less than ten (10) days before the opening of the fair.

Rules & Regulations

2013 OHIO EXHIBITION RULES STATE OF OHIO DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURAL DIVISION OF ANIMAL INDUSTRY Stow OH 43068 INSPECTION AND HEALTH REQUIREMENTS OF LIVESTOCK EXHIBITED IN OHIO

Section 901.76 (Livestock Tampering)

(A) No person shall tamper with any livestock.
(B) No person shall sabotage any livestock exhibited at an exhibition.

(C) In addition to the penalties established in section 901.99 of the Revised Code, whoever violates division [A] or [B] of this section is subject to disciplinary action by the director of agriculture under section 901.74 of the Revised Code.

(D) This section does not apply to either of the following:

(1) Any action taken or activity performed or administered by a licensed veterinarian or in accordance with instructions of a licensed veterinarian if the action or activity was undertaken for accepted medical purposes during the course of a valid veterinarian-client patient relationship;
(2) Accepted grooming, commercial or medical practices as defined by rule of the director adopted under section 901.72 of the Revised Code.

(E) As used in this section:

(1) "Tamper" means any of the following:

(a) Treatment of livestock in such a manner that food derived from the livestock would be considered adulterated as defined in division [A], [B], [C], [D], [E], [H], [I], or [J] of section 3715.59 of the Revised Code;

(b) The injection, use, or administration of any drug that is prohibited under any federal law or law of this state, or any drug that is used in any manner that is not authorized under any federal law or law of this state. Whenever the commissioner of the United States food and drug administration or the secretary of the United States department of agriculture, pursuant to the "Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act," 52 Stat. 1040

[1938], 21 U.S.C.A. 301, as amended, or the federal "Virus-Serum-Toxin Act," 37 Stat. 832 [1913], 21 U.S.C.A. 151, as amended, approves, disapproves, or modifies the conditions of the approved use of a drug, the approval, disapproval, or modification automatically is effective for the purposes of division [E][1][b] of this section, unless the director, in accordance with Chapter 119 of the Revised Code, adopts a rule to alter for the purposes of that division the action taken by the commissioner or secretary. The director may adopt such a rule if the director considers it to be necessary or appropriate for the protection of food safety or the health, safety, or welfare of livestock or to prevent the use of a drug for the purpose of concealing, enhancing, transforming, or changing the true conformation, configuration, or condition of livestock. No such rule shall authorize the use of any drug the use of which is prohibited by, or authorize the use of any drug in a manner not authorized by, the commissioner or secretary under either of those acts.

(c) The injection, or other internal or external administration of any product or material, whether gas, solid, or liquid, to livestock for the purpose of concealing, enhancing, transforming, or changing the true conformation, configuration, condition, or age of the livestock or making the livestock appear

more sound than it actually is;

(d) The use or administration, for cosmetic purposes, of steroids, growth stimulants, or internal artificial filling, including paraffin, silicone injection, or any other substance;

(e) The use or administration of any drug or feed additive affecting the central nervous system of the livestock;

(f) The use or administration of diuretics for cosmetic purposes;

(g) The surgical manipulation or removal of tissue so as to change, transform, or enhance the true conformation or configuration of the livestock;

(2) "Sabotage" means intentionally tampering with any livestock belonging to or owned by another person that has been registered, entered in, or exhibited in any exhibition, or raised with the apparent intent of being entered in an exhibition.

901:1-18-01 Chapter's Application

(A) Animals listed in this chapter when moved or imported into Ohio for exhibition purposes only shall comply with the requirements of this chapter and when in compliance with the provisions of this chapter shall, with the exception of rules governing movement and importation of quarantined animals, be exempt from any other rules governing movement within or importation into Ohio.

(B) Animals moved within or imported into Ohio for any purpose in addition to exhibition shall meet all movement and import requirements of Chapter

901:1-17 of the Administrative Code.

901:1-18-02 Definitions

As used in this chapter:

(A) "Exhibition" means any public show of animals which is sponsored by or under the control of an Ohio county or independent agricultural society organized under chapter 1711. of the revised code; or the Ohio state fair; or which is assembled for a period which exceeds thirty-six hours or contains animals of origins other than Ohio.

(B) "Certificate of veterinary inspection" means a form from the state of origin which has been issued and completed by a licensed and accredited veterinarian attesting to the health status and identification of an animal listed thereon.

(C) "Approved veterinarian" means any licensed and accredited veterinarian approved by the Ohio department of agriculture, or an employee of the Ohio department of agriculture or the United States department of agriculture, animal plant health inspection service, veterinary services.

(D) "Licensed and accredited veterinarian" means a person who is licensed by the state of Ohio to practice veterinary medicine and who is certified by the United States department of agriculture, animal plant health inspection service, veterinary services, to be an accredited veterinarian.

(E) "Residue" means any poisonous or deleterious pesticide governed by 40 C.F.R. 180, any poisonous or deleterious substance governed by 21 C.F.R. 109.6, or any other substance governed by 21 C.F.R. 556.

(F) "Contagious or infectious disease" means any disease, including any foreign animal disease, or vector, capable of transmission by any means from a carrier animal to a human or to another animal and includes dangerously contagious or infectious diseases.

(G) "Tuberculosis accredited free herd" is one that